
 

214 North Hogan Street, 7th Floor      Jacksonville, FL 32202      Phone: 904.255-8200      Fax: 904.255-8209   www.coj.net 

 

 JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 

  

 

 

 
Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority Board of Directors Meeting 

August 15, 2018 
Noon  

214 North Hogan Street, 8th Floor 

  
- AGENDA - 

              
Call Meeting to Order        Chair 
Approval of Minutes of June 18, 2018 Meeting   JHFA Board 
Board Members to take Oath of Office     JHFA Board 
           
 I. Public Comments 
A. Public Comments       Public 

 
II. REPORTS 
A. “To-Do” List Earlier Meetings     Mark Hendrickson 
B. Staff and Financial Report      Laura Stagner  

• Financial Statement  

• Procurement 
C.    Financial Advisor Memo      Mark Hendrickson  

                  
IV. ACTION ITEMS 
A. Board Members Declare Conflicts, if any    Board 
B.   Consider Approval of New Interlocal Agreement with  Rhonda Bond-Collins 
 HFA of Hillsborough County 
C. Consider Ratification of Action Related to Doc Stamp  Mark Hendrickson 
 Exemption for Homebuyers in Single Family Program 
D. Consider Changes to DPA Loan Amount    Mark Hendrickson 
E. Consider Approval of Bond-SAIL Application    Mark Hendrickson 
F.   Consider Approval of Local Government Area of  
 Opportunity NOFA and Application     Mark Hendrickson 
 
V. NEW BUSINESS 
A.   SEE Contribution for 2019 Mark Hendrickson & Laura 

Stagner 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 
A.   Update on Single Family Program     Mark Hendrickson 
B. Update on Millennia Portfolio     Mark Hendrickson 
C.   Update on Houston Street Manor     Laura Stagner &  
          Emerson Lotzia   
D.  Update on Existing Rental Properties     Mark Hendrickson 

• Recent JHFA Activities/Developments 

• Occupancy Report 
 
VII. ADJOURN JHFA MEETING      Chair 



1 

 

 

JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 

 

 
JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 

OF 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

 

 June 18, 2018



2 

 

 

March 21, 2018:  JHFA Board Meeting 
12:00 pm 

214 North Hogan Street, 8th Floor 
 

BOARD MEETING:  
Present at the meeting were: 
 
BOARD MEMBERS  
Spencer Cummings, Vice-Chair 
Dee Bumbarger, Secretary 
James Citrano  
Ruth Owen, Member  
Jane Scofield, Member  
 
PROFESSIONAL STAFF:  
Mark Hendrickson, The Hendrickson Company, Financial Advisor 
Susan Leigh, Community Concepts Group, Financial Advisor 
Cameron Hill, RBC Capital Markets, Investment Banker 
Rhonda Bond-Collins, Bryant Miller Olive, Bond Counsel  
Emerson Lotzia, City of Jacksonville Office of General Counsel 
Tricia Heintz, Bank of New York Mellon, Trustee 
Ben Johnson, Seltzer Management Group, Credit Underwriter 
 
CITY STAFF:  
Laura Stagner  
Jane Bouda 
Lauren Bryan, OIG 
 
PUBLIC:  
Steve Moore, Vestcor 
Ryan Hoover, Vestcor 
 
BOARD MEETING 
Vice-Chairman Cummings called the meeting to order at 12:02 pm 
 
Minutes 
Ms. Owen moved, with a second by Ms. Bumbarger, that the Board approve the minutes of the March 
21, 2018 Board meeting. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Public Comments 
Mr. Ryan Hoover updated the Board on the Lofts at LaVilla, Lofts on Monroe, and Lofts at Jefferson 
Station developments.  
 
 “To-Do” List from Earlier Meetings 
Mr. Hendrickson noted that the list was cleared. 
 
 



3 

 

 

Staff Report and Financial Report 
Ms. Stagner presented the JHFA financials and a proposed FY 18-19 budget. After discussion, Ms. 
Bumbarger moved, with a second by Ms. Scofield, that the Board authorize Ms. Stagner to submit the 
proposed FY 18-19 budget. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Ms. Stagner reported on the upcoming procurement process for professional services, noting that the 
existing contracts had been given a three-month extension, to synchronize the contracts with the City’s 
fiscal year. She also explained the process that would be used for the selection of professionals for the 
period after October 1, 2018, with a selection to be made prior to October 1. Ms. Stagner invited the 
Board to review the draft procurement documents, and submit comments to her. After discussion, Mr. 
Citrano moved, with a second by Ms. Owen, that the Board authorize Ms. Stagner to submit the 
proposed Scopes of Service for Investment Banking, Bond Counsel, Financial Advisor, and Trustee, 
subject inclusion of any comments from the Board. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Board Member Conflicts 
No conflicts were declared by Board members related to items before the JHFA at this meeting. 
 
2018 Bond Allocation  
Mr. Hendrickson gave a brief summary of the bond allocation process. Ms. Bond-Collins reported on 
submissions made for single family and multi-family bond allocations. 
 
Single Family  
Mr. Hendrickson summarized the single-family program, explaining the process by which the JHFA 
obtains loans, pools them into MBS, and sells the MBS for a profit. He also explained the role of 
Mortgage Credit Certificates and Down Payment Assistance given to each borrower. A discussion 
followed on the volume of DPA funding, and the amount of profits realized from MBS sales. After 
discussion, Ms. Owen moved, with a second by Ms. Scofield, that the Board authorize an increase in the 
total volume of DPA loans by $250,000 and the profit realized on MBS sales between June 18 and the 
August JHFA meeting, and that the Board authorize the use of a “net” (total volume less FHFC 
reimbursements and loan repayments) amount when determining the total number of DPA loans. The 
motion passed 5-0. 
 
Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding (Preference) 
Mr. Hendrickson summarized the process by which the JHFA selected a rental development each yea 
which would receive preference for funding in the FHFC 9% Housing Credit process. He stated that the 
Board would need to approve a NOFA at the August meeting in order to select a development for 
preference—due to FHFC moving the application deadline to late October. Mr. Hendrickson stated that 
the goal would be to select a development at the September JHFA meeting. The Board directed Mr. 
Hendrickson to distribute the NOFA from the 2017 selection process, noting that they would provide 
input on targeting/goals at the August meeting. 
 
Multi-Family Updates 
Mr. Hendrickson presented the proposed final approval of the Caroline Arms development. He 
summarized the process that was used to evaluate developments. Mr. Johnson explained the credit 
underwriting, servicing, and monitoring functions performed by his firm. Mr. Hendrickson and Ms. Bond-
Collins explained a 60-day standstill on enforcement of personal guaranties and the payment of JHFA 
fees by stabilization in lieu of receiving fees over an extended period—required due to the short-term 
nature of the bonds. After discussion, Ms. Scofield moved, with a second by Ms. Owen, that the Board 



4 

 

 

adopt the bond approval resolution prepared by bond counsel for the Caroline Arms transaction. The 
motion passed 5-0.  
Mr. Hendrickson reported on the timing delays on the Millennia Portfolio, which are largely due to 
negotiations with HUD over the Section 8 rents. After discussion, Ms. Bumbarger moved, with a second 
by Ms. Owen, that the Board adopt the 1st Amendment to the Preliminary Agreement for the Millennia 
Portfolio, which was prepared by bond counsel, and extended the commitment to October 23, 2018. 
The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Mr. Hendrickson presented an update on The Waves, noting that a bond closing was expected in late 
2018. 
 
Mr. Hendrickson presented the Financial Advisor analysis of the bond application for Desert 
Winds/Silver Creek. He also explained the process by which developments were invited into the formal 
review process, with the first step being an “inducement”, followed by TEFRA hearing, TEFRA approval, 
credit underwriting, and final approval. Mr. Hendrickson explained various waiver requests made by the 
applicant, and recommended that with the exception of the parking and roofing waivers, they be denied 
subject to review by the credit underwriter. After discussion, Ms. Owen, moved, with a second by Ms. 
Scofield, that the Board (1) approve Inducement Resolution prepared by bond counsel, subject to all 
conditions in the JHFA MF Handbook and the recommendations included in the full FA analysis of each 
application (part of the Board Packet), (2) Deny most Waiver Requests, subject to verification of cost 
feasibility by credit underwriter, as noted in full FA analysis, and (3) Approve Waiver Requests related 
to 30-year life roofing and requirement for 2 or more parking spaces per unit. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Existing Rental Properties 
Mr. Hendrickson reported on the developments that had been financed by JHFA over the past five years, 
and on the high level of occupancy in the portfolio.  
 
Mr. Hendrickson reported on two requests related to Caroline Oaks, related to an amendment to the 
LURA removing the requirement for marble window sills, and an amendment to the Trust Indenture 
requiring a rate increase on the bonds corresponding to any decrease in the federal corporate income 
tax rate. After discussion, Ms. Owen moved, with a second by Ms. Scofield, that the Board approve the 
request removing marble window sills as a requirement of the development, and authorizing an 
amendment to the LURA reflecting that removal. The motion passed 5-0. After additional discussion 
Ms. Bumbarger moved, with a second by Ms. Scofield, that the Board approve an amendment to the 
Trust Indenture, removing the automatic interest rate increase related to the reduction of the federal 
corporate tax rate, and authorizing the execution of an amended Trust Indenture and related 
documents. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Ms. Bond-Collins reported that the Hartwood transaction was the subject of a random IRS audit. 
 
New Business 
Ms. Bumbarger presented the NEFAR report on the single-family markets in the Jacksonville area. 
 
Adjournment 
On a motion by Ms. Bumbarger, seconded by Ms. Scofield, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn the 
meeting at 1:30 PM   



JHFA Direction to Team 
From September 17, 2015, & January 17, 2018 Meetings 

 
Board Direction Staff Status 

September 17, 2015   

Board withdrew approval of earlier MOU for staffing services 
with City, and directed that new agreement be brought back to 
them for review and approval of document and staffing 
commitments. 

 Waiting for City. Will place on August 
2018 JHFA agenda. 

June 18, 2018   

Board directed Mr. Hendrickson to distribute NOFA from last 
year’s Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding 
(Preference) process 

Mark Emailed to Board 6-19-18 

 



 1 

THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY & COMMUNITY CONCEPTS GROUP 
 

To:  Board of Directors, Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority  
 

From:  Mark Hendrickson & Susan Leigh, Financial Advisors 
 

Subject:  August 15, 2018 JHFA Meeting 
 

Date:  July 30, 2018 

 
 

I. Oath of Office—Action  
 
1. Board members are required to take an oath of office. With several new members, and some 

longer-serving members who may not have taken the oath, counsel advising that all members 
take the oath at this meeting. 
 

2. The oath: 
"I do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I am duly qualified to hold office under the Constitution of 
the state, or of the Charter or Ordinance Code of the City of Jacksonville; that I will support, 
protect, defend and honor the Constitutions, Governments, and laws of the United States and 
of the State of Florida; that I will support, protect, defend and honor the Charter, the ethics 
laws, and other ordinances, rules, and regulations of the City of Jacksonville; and that I will 
well and faithfully perform the duties of (title of office) on which I am now about to enter. So 
help me God." 

 
3. Recommendation: OGC Counsel to administer oath of office to all members. 

 
 

II. 2018 Bond Allocation—Informational 
 

1. The 2018 allocation is $48,155,194, an increase of $3,143,590 (7.0%) over 2017: 
 

Year Single Family 
Amount 

Multifamily 
Amount 

Unallocated Expiration 

2018 $33,954,194 $  14,200,000 $16,045,806 November 14, 2018 

2017 $50,000,000 $156,500,000  December 31, 2020 

2016  $107,400,000  December 31, 2019 

2015    December 31, 2018 

TOTAL $83,954,194 $278,100,000 $16,045,806  

 
2. Recommendation: None. 

 
III. 2013 Single Family Loan Program—Action 

 
1. The current program guidelines: 

• 1st mortgage: 5.0%, 1% origination fee, FHA, VA, RD, 5.25% for Freddie Mac loans & 
5.00% for HHF loans 

• First time homebuyers. 

• Income and Sales Price limits identical to bond issue. 

• Minimum credit score of 640 



 2 

• Interest rate set by the HFA of Hillsborough County, with rate set at level that is anticipated 

to generate a premium when sold. 

• Loans purchased by the master servicer (US Bank) and converted into MBS. 

• MBS are purchased by the HFA of Hillsborough County, on behalf of all HFA’s 

• MBS are sold, with each HFA keeping its pro rata share of any net premium or loss 

realized from the sale of the MBS. 

• Down payment assistance: $7.500 second mortgage, due on sale of property, or maturity 
of first mortgage    

• Mortgage Credit Certificates providing homebuyers a credit in the amount of 50% of 
mortgage interest paid annually (up to a $2,000 annually). 

 

2. DPA: $88,796 was received from FHFC. The JHFA has funded another $1,306,010. The 

JHFA set the DPA amount at $7,500 in effective January 2017. Loans totaling $27,500 have 

paid in full. 

 

3. Hardest Hit Fund (HHF) DPA: The HHF DPA Program ($15,000 forgivable loan) ended April 

24 when all funds were committed. Two-hundred twelve (212) Jacksonville loans for 

$29,965,395 are in the pipeline. With an average net profit of 2.25%, this will generate 

approximately $675,000 of income, and bring $3,180,000 of federal HHF funds to Jacksonville 

borrowers.  

 

4. Authorized DPA Funds: $1,803,000 (plus MBS profit, June-August): 

• $250,000 authorized by the City Council 

• At the May 2015 meeting, the Board (using the power granted under the new legislation) 

increased the amount of available DPA funds by $200,000. 

• In June 2015, the Board authorized the use of an additional $400,000 

• In September 2017, the Board authorized the use of an additional $703,000 

• In June 2018, the Board authorized the use of an additional $250,000 plus the profit 

realized on MBS sales between June 18 and the August JHFA meeting ($303,040 to date) 

• FHFC reimbursed JHFA $88,796, and $27,500 have paid in full 

• Total originations to date are $1,596,010—net of $1,479,714 

• In June 2018, the Board authorized using “net” amount of loans funded (total, less FHFC 

and payoffs) when determining if the limit had been reached. 

 

5. Current Program Volume: Total first-mortgage loan originations are $55.554 million. The 

regular (non-HHF) JHFA program had its largest month for originations in June 2018—27 

loans ($202,500 of DPA), followed by 32 loans ($240,0000) in July. The previous high was 15 

loans. This is not sustainable. eHousing is evaluating the program, to determine if a reduction 

in the DPA amount would “kill” the program. FHFC and JHFA are offering the same amount of 

DPA, but the FHFC mortgage rate is 5.25%/5.75%. their FHA borrowers do not receive an 

MCC. Despite this, FHFC is originated 3X as many loans per month as JHFA. 

 

6. Rate Change: The interest rate was increased from 4.875% to 5.00% in March 2018. 

 
 



 3 

7. Program Demographics: 

Sales Price/      
# Loans 

Loan 
Amount 
 

Borrower 
Income 

Borrower 
Age/ 
Gender 

Borrower 
Family 
Size 

 

Housing Type Borrower 
Ethnicity 

MCC 
Amount 

$138,713 
419 loans 
+16 loans 

$132,589 
 
 

$47,245 
 

37.0 
 
47% 
female 

2.3 SF Detached 92%  
Condo:            2%            
Townhouse:    6% 
 
Existing:        97% 
New:               3% 

Black:      27% 
White:      39% 
Hispanic: 19% 
Mixed:       1% 
Asian:        8% 
Other:        5% 

$17,532,771 
$62,617.04 
avg. 
280 buyers 

 

8. Lender Originations: Academy (117), SWBC (107), Bank of England (51), Prime (46), 

Fairway (43), CMG (13), Pacific Union (21), Network Funding (6), Open (5), DHI (4), Ameris 

Bank (3), DHI (4), Resource Financial (1), Paramount (1) & GSF (1). 

 

9. MCC’s: The HFA converted $120 million of bond authority into $30 million of MCC’s. Tranche 

1 ($5.25 million) expired at the end of 2015 with $1,109,274 not utilized. Tranche 2 ($10.0 

million) expired at the end of 2016, with $9,668,903 not utilized. Tranche 3 ($14.75 million) 

expires at the end of 2018. Tranche 4 ($20,062,500) expires December 31, 2020. 

 

10. MCC Program: What Does it Mean to Home Buyer: With the HFA’s average loan of 

$132,000 and a 5.00%/30-year mortgage, interest payments in Year 1 = $6,556. With the 50% 

MCC rate that the HFA has chosen, the homebuyer would be able to claim a tax credit of 

the full $2,000 per year maximum allowed by federal law (slightly declining after year 10 as 

more of monthly payment is principal) until the home buyers sells or moves from the property. 

The $2,000 of tax savings lowers the “functional” mortgage rate for the program from 5.00% to 

approximately 3.8%. 

 
11. MBS Sales: The HFA has executed 101 sales, with net revenues of $1,112,937 (net meaning 

after payments to RBC and counsel) coming to JHFA. As of July 27, $303,040 of that profit 

was realized after the June JHFA meeting    

 
12. Hedges & Exposure: Hillsborough County has 20 hedges totaling $33.445 million in place. 

With full delivery, the projected net revenues are estimated at $805,120 (shared pro rata with 

counties based upon originations). The unhedged pipeline as of July 27 is $0 (changes daily). 

 
13. Size of Program: The initial legislation wherein City Council authorized the program limited it 

to no more than $1.5 million of loans in pipeline at any time. In June, the Board changed the 

authorization to $1.5 million of unhedged loans. Loans originated or in progress are $49.195 

million. 239 of the 372 loans in the program have originated this year. 

 
14. Interlocal Agreement: The Interlocal Agreement with the HFA of Hillsborough County expires 

September 30. 

 
15. Doc Stamp Exemption: The legislature passed legislation effective July 1 exempting our 

non-bond borrowers (first and DPA loans) from paying the doc stamp on the mortgage. In the 

interim between meetings, a plan to implement the exemption for the borrowers was initiated.  



 4 

16. Recommendations: (1) Adopt Resolution drafted by bond counsel approving the form of the 

Interlocal Agreement with the HFA of Hillsborough County, (2) Adopt Resolution prepared by 

bond counsel ratifying actions related to implementation of the doc stamp exemption, and (3) 

Consider changes to DPA loan amount. 

 
IV. Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding (Preference)—Action 

 
1. FHFC is continuing the LGAOF system for 2018-2019, with an application deadline of October 

30. Accordingly, JHFA will need to adopt targeting goals at the August meeting, with a 
selection of a development at the September or October Board meeting. 
 

2. Unfortunately, FHFC has proposed a policy which would override the LGAOF system in two of 
the six large counties each year by “Geographic Areas of Opportunity”. JHFA’s Chairman and 
the Financial Advisor have submitted comments to FHFC opposing this change. Until FHFC 
policy is decided, the JHFA cannot finalize the LGAOF process. 

 
3. At their July 27 meeting, FHFC announced that Duval will NOT be one of the counties 

impacted by the Geographic Area of Opportunity override of the local preference for this year. 
 

4. Susan Leigh has recused herself from this item, and has not participated in the deliberations 
of staff nor in the drafting of this section of the memo. She has a developer client which might 
submit an application for the Jacksonville LGAOF. 
 

5. Recommendation: To be presented at JHFA meeting. 
 

 
V. New Rental Financings—Action 

 
1. The 2018 bond NOFA had a due date of January 8, 2018—with no new applications received. 

The NOFA is now “open” to applications on a first-received first-evaluated basis.  
 

2. SAIL Applications and Local Bonds: The FHFC SAIL application requires developers using 
local HFA bonds to include a letter verifying from the local HFA verifying that a complete bond 
application has been submitted. For developers using FHFC bonds, the requirement is simply 
to check a box for FHFC bonds. This creates an uneven playing field, as most developers do 
not have the time and resources to fill out a lengthy local bond application in for every deal for 
which they are applying for SAIL. FHFC recognizes the problem, but is reluctant to change the 
system because it is necessary to have a complete bond application in place to “lock-in” 
bonus federal tax credits based upon the development being in a Qualified Census Tract or 
Difficult to Develop Area (both of which change every year). The system resulted in every 
successful SAIL application except one using FHFC bonds. In order to encourage the use of 
JHFA bonds, a short initial bond application would be required (to be supplemented by 
another more detailed submission by the developer to JHFA if the developer is awarded SAIL 
funding. 
 

3. Caroline Arms closed on July 3.  
 

4. Millennia Portfolio was scheduled to close in May 2018. However, the developer is still 
negotiating with HUD as to the Section 8 rents that will be in place after renovation—and that 
rent level will impact appraised value and the amount of Housing Credits that they 
development will be able to claim. Until resolved, the deal will not be ready to close. The 



 5 

developer has been cautioned against any delay in closing that would trigger the need for 
another TEFRA hearing and approval. The properties continue to generate negative publicity. 

 
5. The Waves: is tentatively scheduled to close in late 2018. 

 
6. Desert Winds/Silver Creek is moving forward for a TEFRA hearing and approval. 

 
7. Recommendations: Authorize the Financial Advisor, legal counsel, and staff to draft a SAIL-

Bond application, and publish a NOFA for that application. 
 

 The Waves Caroline Arms Desert Winds/Silver Creek 

Developer/ 
Location 

Jacksonville Housing Authority 
& Vestcor 

Jacksonville, FL 

Lincoln Avenue Capital 
Santa Monica, CA 

LEDIC Realty Management 
Montgomery, AL 

Development Location Nine scattered JHA public 
housing sites in Jacksonville 

Beach 

6457 Fort Caroline Road 
Arlington  

300 Silver Creed Trace 
Arlington/Southside 

City Council District Bill Gulliford Joyce Morgan Scott Wilson 

Type New Construction 
Garden 

Acquisition & Rehabilitation 
Garden 

Acquisition & Rehabilitation 
Garden 

Bond Request $17,750,000 
$139,764/unit 

$12,500,000 
$6,275/unit 

$24,980,000 
$82,171/unit 

TEFRA Hearing  
TEFRA Approval  
Preliminary Agreement 
Expiration 

2-28-18 
4-24-18 

12-31-18 

4-2-18 
5-8-18 

12-31-18 

7-26-18 
TBD 

12-31-18 

Credit Enhancement Private Placement to SunTrust 
Bank 

Cash Collateralized Short-
Term Bonds 

Fannie Mae Permanent 1st 

Cash Collateralized Short-
Term Bonds 

FHA Permanent 1st 

Credit Underwriter First Housing Seltzer Seltzer 

Closing Date Late 2018 Summer 2018 Late 2018 

Units 127 204 304 

Permanent 1st 
Mortgage Estimate 

$6,600,000 $14,400,000 $24,980,000 

SAIL, ELI, HOME (FHFC)  $7,600,000 $0 $0 

JHFA Loan  $115,000 $0 $0 

Housing Credits Wells Fargo Bank 
$7,799,289 

$61,416/unit 

Pillar Financial (SunTrust) 
$6,073,369 

$29,771/unit 

PNC Real Estate 
$9,939,553 

$32,696/unit 

TDC $23,377,628 $22,630,922 $36,850,829 

TDC per unit $184,076 $11,936 $121,220 

Land Cost $0 
$1 per year lease 

$1,854,000 
$9,088/unit 

$2,820,000 
$9,276/unit 

Acquisition of Building  NA $9,896,000 
$48,510/unit 

$15,980,000 
$52,566/unit 

Hard Construction or 
Rehabilitation Cost 

$15,068,550 
$118,650/unit 
$104.53/Sq. Ft. 

$5,723,208 
$28,055/unit 
$33.04/Sq. Ft. 

$9,061,026 
$29,806/unit 
$33.74/Sq. Ft. 

Set Aside Period 50 years 50 years 50 years 

Set Aside Levels 90%<60% AMI 
10%<33% AMI 

100%<60% AMI 
 

98%<60% AMI 
2% unrestricted 

 



 6 

Current Name Eureka Gardens I & 
II 

Moncrief Village Southside 
Apartments 

Washington 
Heights 

New Name Valencia Way Estuary Estates Oyster Pointe Charlesfort 
Commons 

Revised New Name Valencia Way The Weldon Palmetto Glen Calloway Cove 

Developer/Location Millennia Housing 
Development 
Cleveland, OH 

Millennia Housing 
Development 
Cleveland, OH 

Millennia Housing 
Development 
Cleveland, OH 

Millennia Housing 
Development 
Cleveland, OH 

Street Address 1214 Labelle Street 1650 Moncrief 
Village North 

2414 Westmont 
Street 

4229 Moncrief 
Road W 

City Council District Garrett Dennis Katrina Brown Lori Boyer Reginald Brown 

Type Acquisition & 
Substantial 

Rehabilitation 

Acquisition & 
Substantial 

Rehabilitation 

Acquisition & 
Substantial 

Rehabilitation 

Acquisition & 
Substantial 

Rehabilitation 

Bond Request $38,780,000 
$96,950/unit 

$9,190,000 
$97,766/unit 

$7,160,000 
$96,757/unit 

$20,890,000 
$104,450/unit 

TEFRA Hearing  
TEFRA Approval  
Preliminary Agreement 
Expiration 

9-19-17 
10-24-17 
10-23-18 

9-19-17 
10-24-17 
10-23-18 

9-19-17 
10-24-17 
10-23-18 

9-19-17 
10-24-17 
10-23-18 

Credit Enhancement R4 
Private Placement 

R4 
Private Placement 

R4 
Private Placement 

R4 
Private Placement 

Credit Underwriter First Housing First Housing First Housing First Housing 

Closing Date TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Units 400 94 74 200 

Permanent 1st Mortgage 
Estimate 

$38,780,000 $9,190,000 $7,160,000 $20,890,000 

SAIL/FHFC Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 

JHFA or City Loan $0 $0 $0 $0 

Housing Credits R4 
$20,058,866 
$50,147/unit 

R4 
$4,242,648 

$45,135/unit 

R4 
$3,906,029 

$52,784/unit 

R4 
$10,698,579 
$53,493/unit 

Total Development Cost $64,042,483 $14,327,577 $12,440,322 $34,755,018 

TDC Per Unit $160,106 $152,421 168,112 $173,775 

Land Cost $2,600,000 
$6,500/unit 

$600,000 
$6,373/unit 

$470,000 
$6,351/unit 

$1,600,000 
$8,000/unit 

Acquisition of Building Cost $23,400,000 
$58,500/unit 

$5,400,000 
$57,447/unit 

$4,230,000 
$57,162/unit 

$14,400,000 
$72,000/unit 

Hard Rehabilitation Cost $21,725,475 
$64.29/Sq. Ft. 
$54,314/unit 

$4,186,400 
$77.93/Sq. Ft. 
$44,536/unit 

$4,118,000 
$70.71/Sq. Ft.  
$55,649/unit 

$10,196,161 
$56.60/Sq. Ft. 
$50,981/unit 

Set-Aside Period 50 years 50 years 50 years 50 years 

Set-Aside Levels 100%<60% AMI 100%<60% AMI 100%<60% AMI 100%<60% AMI 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



 7 

VI. Update on Existing Rental Properties—Informational 
 
1. JHFA marketed its bonds, JHFA loans, and JHFA local government contributions to 

developers. As a result, the following has been accomplished in the last three years: 
: 
Development Location Building 

Type 
Demographic 

Units  TDC JHFA Loan 

Peyton Ridge 1800 Corporate 
Square Blvd 

3-Story Elevator 
NC 
Elderly 

   120 $16,894,456 $115,000 

Caroline Oaks North Main, east 
side just south of E. 
43rd Street 

3-Story Elevator 
NC 
Elderly 

     82 $14,146,603 $5.6 million bonds 
$2.2 million JHFA loan 

Cathedral Terrace 701 N. Ocean St. High Rise 
Rehab 
Elderly 

   240 $25,604,057 $12.5 million bonds 
$1.0 million JHFA loan 

Mt. Carmel 
Gardens 

5746 Mt. Carmel 
Terrace 

High Rise 
Rehab 
Elderly 

   207 $21,631,853 $9.75 million bonds 

Mary Eaves  East of intersection 
of Myrtle Ave. N. & 
West 16th St. 

Mid-Rise 
NC 
Elderly 

     80 $13,325,568 $300,000 

Lofts at LaVilla 906 West Bay 
Street 

Mid-Rise 
NC 
Family 

   130 $23,388,174 $265,000 

Lofts at LaVilla on 
Monroe 

1000 West Monroe 
Street 

Mid-Rise 
NC 
Family 

   108 $20,962,615 $303,750 

Houston Street 
Manor 

615 Houston Street  Mid-Rise 
NC 
Elderly 

     72 $21,185,213 $115,000 

Timberwood 
Trace 

12250 Atlantic 
Boulevard 
 

Garden 
Rehab 
Family 

   224 $31,238,140 $16.0 million bonds 

Oakwood Villa 8201 Kona Avenue Garden 
Rehab 
Family 

   200 $23,092,183 $12.7 million bonds 

Lofts at Jefferson 
Station 

799 Water Street Mid-Rise 
NC 
Family 

     98 $20,943,699 $225,750 

Caroline Arms 6457 Fort Caroline 
Road 

Garden 
Rehab 
Family 

   204 $22,630,922 $12.5 million bonds 

TOTAL   1,765 $255,343,483 $69.05 million bonds 
$4.525 million JHFA loans 

 
2. Occupancy: The current portfolio occupancy using a weighted average is 97.3% (-0.6%).  

 
3. Houston Street Manor: The completion of the property has fallen well behind schedule—so 

much so that the JHFA’s loan commitment for funding has expired. Mr. Lotzia and Ms. 
Stagner will update the Board on the situation at the meeting.  

 



 8 

4. Recommendation: None.  
 
 

 
 
 

VII. Sadowski Education Effort—Action 
 

1. For the 2018 Legislative Session, JHFA contributed $15,000 towards the Sadowski Education 
Effort (SEE) 
 

2. Without SEE, SHIP funding would be severely reduced or eliminated. 
 

3. Jacksonville received $1,294,383 of SHIP funds for FY 17-18. This translates into a 86-1 
return on investment of JHFA’s $15,000. This year’s SHIP funding was unusually low—last 
year the $15,000 investment resulted in $3,946,988 of SHIP funding for the City. 

 
4. The SEE budget for 2018 is $218,000. The HFA’s of Hillsborough and Lee counties contribute 

$20,000 each year, with almost all other large and medium county HFA’s at $15,000  JHFA 
has sufficient budget authority to make a SEE payment at the end of this fiscal year. 

 
5. Since SEE began in 2011: 

• Jacksonville has received over $19.2 million of SHIP Funds and $18.0 million of SAIL 
funds—total $37.2 million. 

• Jacksonville HFA has invested $90,000 in the effort. 

• That is a return on the $90,000 investment of 413-1 
 

6. Recommendation: Authorize staff to make a $15,000 SEE Payment in September 2018, and 
include SEE funding in FY 2018-2019 budget. 

 
 

 
 

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91 97 103

Portfolio Occupancy



26460/025/01387687.DOCv1 

RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION OF THE JACKSONVILLE HOUSING 
FINANCE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE JACKSONVILLE 
HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY AND THE HOUSING 
FINANCE AUTHORITY OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Part IV of Chapter 159 of the Florida Statutes authorizes the creation of Housing 
Finance Authorities within the State of Florida, including the Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority 
(the “Jacksonville Authority”) for the purpose of issuing revenue bonds and refunding bonds, making 
loans directly to persons and families and issuing mortgage credit certificates to assist in relieving the 
shortage of housing available at prices or rentals which many persons and families can afford; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to individual interlocal agreements entered into between the Housing 
Finance Authority of Hillsborough County (the “Hillsborough Authority”) and the Housing Finance 
Authorities in other counties (or with other counties in the absence of a housing finance authority) within 
the State, including Duval County, Florida (collectively, the "Counties"), each of the Counties have 
delegated its authority to purchase mortgage loans or securities backed by mortgage loans originated 
within the territorial boundaries of its respective county to the Hillsborough Authority (the territorial 
boundaries of Hillsborough County and the territorial boundaries of such other counties, collectively, the 
"Area of Operation"); and 

WHEREAS, by combining the efforts of the Hillsborough Authority and the Counties, the 
Hillsborough Authority is be able to make available mortgage loans at rates below the rates otherwise 
attainable if any of the Counties undertook a separate program; and 

WHEREAS, the facilitation of mortgage loans by the Hillsborough Authority in the Area of 
Operation will result in a wider allocation of fixed expenses and achieve certain other economies of scale 
that will have the effect of reducing the interest on mortgage loans that otherwise would have to be 
charged; and 

WHEREAS, Sections 163.01, 159.608 and 125.01, Florida Statutes, authorizes the Hillsborough 
Authority and the Jacksonville Authority to enter into an Interlocal Agreement in order to make the most 
efficient use of their respective powers, resources and capabilities by authorizing the Hillsborough 
Authority to exercise those powers which are common to them for the purpose of issuing one or more 
series of the Bonds, making loans directly to persons and families and/or issuing mortgage credit 
certificates with respect to qualifying single family mortgage loan programs in the entire Area of 
Operation; and 

WHEREAS, in September 2015, the Hillsborough Authority and the Jacksonville Authority 
entered into that certain Interlocal Agreement which has expiration date of September 30, 2018; and   

WHEREAS, the Jacksonville Authority and the Hillsborough have agreed to enter into a new 
Interlocal Agreement, the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof. 

 



26460/025/01387687.DOCv1 
2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT DETERMINED AND RESOLVED BY THE 
JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY THAT: 

SECTION 1.  EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT.  The Chair or Vice Chair of the Jacksonville Authority is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute, for and on behalf of the Jacksonville Authority, the Interlocal Agreement in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A with such changes, modifications, deletions 
and insertions as the Chair or Vice Chair, with the advice of Authority's counsel and bond 
counsel, may deem necessary and appropriate.  Such execution and delivery shall be conclusive 
evidence of the approval thereof by the Jacksonville Authority. 

SECTION 2.  GENERAL AUTHORIZATION.  The Chair, the Vice Chair, the 
Secretary and counsel for the Jacksonville Authority, the Jacksonville Authority's financial 
advisor and bond counsel, are hereby further authorized to proceed, upon execution of the 
Interlocal Agreement, with the undertakings provided for therein on the part of the Jacksonville 
Authority. 

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any one or more of the covenants, agreements or 
provisions of this Resolution, or the document attached hereto or contemplated hereby, should be 
held contrary to any express provision of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though not 
expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall for any reason whatsoever be held invalid, 
then such covenants, agreements or provisions shall be null and void and shall be deemed 
separate from the remaining covenants, agreements or provisions of this Resolution. 

SECTION 11.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective 
immediately upon its passage. 



26460/025/01387687.DOCv1 
3 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority this 
15th day of August, 2018. 

JACKSONVILLE HOUSING 
FINANCE AUTHORITY 

By:  
ATTEST: William I. Gulliford, III, Chair 
 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  Assistant Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

By:  
Office of the General Counsel 



 

26460/025/01387687.DOCv1 
Exhibit A 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 



6139/02/01383593.DOCXv2 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between the Housing Finance Authority of 
Hillsborough County, Florida, a public body corporate and politic organized and existing under the laws 
of the State of Florida (hereinafter referred to as the "Hillsborough Authority"), and the Jacksonville 
Housing Finance Authority, a public body corporate and politic of the State of Florida (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Jacksonville Authority"). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Part IV of Chapter 159 of the Florida Statutes authorizes the creation of Housing 
Finance Authorities within the State of Florida for the purpose of issuing revenue bonds and refunding 
bonds, making loans directly to persons and families and issuing mortgage credit certificates to assist in 
relieving the shortage of housing available at prices or rentals which many persons and families can 
afford; and 

WHEREAS, the Hillsborough Authority has authorized the initiation of official action for the 
issuance of its Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, various Series (collectively, and as such bonds 
may hereafter by designated as separate series, the "Bonds") and in connection therewith facilitating the 
loaning of funds to qualified persons and issuing mortgage credit certificates (the "Certificates") in the 
place of said Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 143 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, the 
amount of private activity bonds, including qualified mortgage bonds and mortgage credit certificates, 
which may be issued by governmental units in any calendar year is limited, and is available for allocation 
to issuers within the State in accordance with Chapter 159, Part VI, Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to individual interlocal agreements to be entered into between the 
Hillsborough Authority and the Housing Finance Authorities in other counties (or with other counties in 
the absence of a housing finance authority) within the State, including Duval County (collectively, the 
"Counties"), each of the Counties will delegate its authority to purchase mortgage loans or securities 
backed by mortgage loans originated within the territorial boundaries of its respective county to the 
Hillsborough Authority (the territorial boundaries of Hillsborough County and the territorial boundaries 
of such other counties, collectively, the "Area of Operation"); and 

WHEREAS, by combining the efforts of the Hillsborough Authority and the Counties, the 
Hillsborough Authority will be able to make available mortgage loans at rates below the rates otherwise 
attainable if any of the Counties undertook a separate program; 

WHEREAS, the facilitation of mortgage loans by the Hillsborough Authority in the Area of 
Operation will result in a wider allocation of fixed expenses and achieve certain other economies of scale 
that will have the effect of reducing the interest on mortgage loans that otherwise would have to be 
charged; and 

WHEREAS, Sections 163.01, 159.608 and 125.01, Florida Statutes, authorize the Hillsborough 
Authority and the Jacksonville Authority to enter into this Interlocal Agreement in order to make the most 
efficient use of their respective powers, resources and capabilities by authorizing the Hillsborough 
Authority to exercise those powers which are common to them for the purpose of issuing one or more 
series of the Bonds, making loans directly to persons and families and/or issuing mortgage credit 
certificates with respect to qualifying single family mortgage loan programs in the entire Area of 
Operation. 



6139/02/01383593.DOCXv2 
2 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1.  SUBSTITUTION OF BONDS.  The Jacksonville Authority hereby grants 
authority to the Hillsborough Authority to issue its Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds for qualified 
single family housing mortgage loans described in the resolutions authorizing the Bonds, over the three 
year period commencing October 1, 2018 and ending September 30, 2021 and any such Bonds issued for 
such qualifying housing mortgage loans in Duval County are hereby deemed to be in full substitution for 
an equivalent principal amount of the Jacksonville Authority's Bonds.  All revenues generated by Bonds 
issued pursuant to this Agreement and by the use of the proceeds thereof, will be administered by the 
Hillsborough Authority or its agents and all payments due from such revenues shall be paid by the 
Hillsborough Authority or its agents without further action by the Jacksonville Authority.  

SECTION 2.  PURCHASE OF LOANS OR MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES.  The 
Hillsborough Authority's program contemplates the possible purchase by the Hillsborough Authority of 
mortgage loans or mortgage-backed securities originated under the program.  The Jacksonville Authority 
agrees that it shall provide funds to the Hillsborough Authority sufficient to purchase any such mortgage 
loans originated in Duval County or the portion of any mortgage-backed securities relating to mortgage 
loans originated in Duval County upon notice from the Hillsborough Authority.  The maximum amount 
of funds the Jacksonville Authority has allocated for this purpose is $1,500,000.  Upon the purchase of 
any such mortgage loans or mortgage-backed securities, the mortgage loans or mortgage-backed 
securities shall be assigned and/or transferred from the Hillsborough Authority to the Jacksonville 
Authority unless otherwise directed by the Jacksonville Authority. 

SECTION 3.  SECOND MORTGAGES.  The Hillsborough Authority's program also 
contemplates the provision to each borrower of a second mortgage loan to assist with down-payment and 
other costs. The Jacksonville Authority agrees to purchase any second mortgage loan originated under the 
program with respect to residences in Duval County, provided that (i) prior to the purchase of such second 
mortgage loan by the Hillsborough Authority, the Jacksonville Authority shall have the opportunity to 
review and approve the documentation for the second mortgage loan, and (ii) the Jacksonville Authority 
designates from time to time a maximum amount for second mortgage loans under the program.  The 
Hillsborough Authority agrees to cause any second mortgage loans originated within Duval County to be 
serviced pursuant to the Hillsborough Authority's servicing agreement for the program. 

SECTION 4.  MORTGAGE CREDIT CERTIFICATES.  The Jacksonville Authority agrees 
to secure, with existing private activity bond allocation available to the Jacksonville Authority, mortgage 
credit certificate authority in an amount of not less than $10,000,000, and shall take such steps and enter 
into such agreements necessary to enable loans made under the program in Duval County to receive such 
credits in lieu of tax-exempt bond financing. 

SECTION 5.  ADMINISTRATION.  The Hillsborough Authority hereby assumes 
responsibility for administering this Agreement by and through its employees, agents and officers; 
provided, however, that the Jacksonville Authority retains and reserves its right and obligation to require 
reasonable reporting on programs designed for and operated within Duval County.  The Hillsborough 
Authority and its agents shall provide the Jacksonville Authority with such reports as may be necessary to 
account for funds generated by this Agreement. 

The Hillsborough Authority shall have full authority and responsibility to negotiate, validate, 
market, sell, issue and deliver its Bonds in such amounts and at such times as the Hillsborough Authority 
shall in its sole judgment determine (taking into account lender demand and available allocation of private 
activity bond issuance authority pursuant to Chapter 159, Part VI, Florida Statutes) to finance qualifying 
single family developments in Duval County and to implement the program, and shall take such other 



6139/02/01383593.DOCXv2 
3 

action as may be necessary or convenient to accomplish such purpose.  Such Bonds may be issued in one 
or more series as determined by the Hillsborough Authority. 

SECTION 6.  PROGRAM PARAMETERS.  The Jacksonville Authority shall establish the 
maximum housing prices and maximum adjusted family income for eligible borrowers in Duval County.  
The Jacksonville Authority hereby consents and agrees to the establishment by the Hillsborough 
Authority of all other program parameters. 

SECTION 7.  TERM.  This Agreement will remain in full force and effect from the date of its 
execution until September 30, 2021; provided that any party hereto shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement upon 30 days' written notice to the other party hereto.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is 
agreed that this Agreement may not be terminated by any party during any period that any series of Bonds 
issued pursuant to the terms hereof remain outstanding, or during any period in which the proceeds of 
such Bonds or loans or mortgage-backed securities intended for purchase by the Jacksonville Authority 
are still in the possession of the Hillsborough Authority or its agents pending distribution, unless the 
parties to this Agreement mutually agree in writing to the terms of such termination.  It is further agreed 
that in the event of termination the parties to this Agreement will provide continuing cooperation to each 
other fulfilling the obligations associated with the program described in this Agreement. 

SECTION 8.  INDEMNITY.  The Hillsborough Authority agrees to hold the Jacksonville 
Authority harmless, to the extent permitted by law and solely from amounts made available under the 
documents relating to the Bonds, from any and all liability for repayment of principal of and interest or 
penalty on the Bonds or in connection with the approval by the Jacksonville Authority of the program 
parameters as required by Section 6 of this Agreement, or in connection with the approval rendered by the 
Jacksonville Authority pursuant to Sections 159.603 and 159.604, Florida Statutes.  The Hillsborough 
Authority agrees that any offering circular or official statement approved by and used in marketing the 
Bonds will include a statement that Bondholders may not look to the Jacksonville Authority for payment 
of the Bonds and interest or premium thereon. 

SECTION 9.  COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, 
each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 



6139/02/01383593.DOCXv2 
4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Agreement have caused their names to be affixed 
hereto by the proper officers thereof as of the ____ day of ________________, 2018. 

HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY OF 
HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

(SEAL) By:  
Chair 

ATTEST: 

  
Assistant Secretary 

(SEAL) JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE 
 AUTHORITY 

By:  
Chair 

  
Assistant Secretary 



 

1 

 

Applications Due: TBD  
for 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA OF OPPORTUNITY FUNDING REQUESTS 
In Conjunction with FHFC RFA 2018-112  

 
JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 
NOTICE OF FUND AVAILABILITY & 

REQUEST FOR APPLICATIONS 
 

 
The Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority (the "Authority") announces the availability of funds and is 
requesting applications for the consideration of providing local government support for qualified 
multifamily housing developments which meet the goals of the Authority and comply with applicable 
federal and state law.  The Authority has adopted the following guidelines to set forth the general 
requirements and procedures that apply to the financing of multifamily housing developments. The 
Authority may waive specific provisions of these guidelines where good cause is shown and adequate 
supporting documentation is provided.  Any waiver is at the sole discretion of the Authority, and may 
require approval by the Jacksonville City Council.  In addition, these guidelines may be amended, revised, 
repealed or otherwise altered by the Authority with or without notice.  The Authority specifically 
welcomes requests for proposed alternative resident programs or development/unit features. 
 
All applications submitted will be reviewed by the Authority’s Financial Advisor, who will make 
recommendations to the Board.  The Board will decide whether or not to authorize commitment letters 
and loans providing Local Government Area of Opporrtunity Funding for developments seeking FHFC 
Housing Credits in conjunction with FHFC RFA 2018-112 and/or loans providing Local Government 
Contributions in conjunction with FHFC RFA 2018-112.  Submission of an application does not entitle the 
Applicant to financing, even if sufficient funds remain.   
 
The Authority will not consider issuing commitment letters to provide financing for any development 
unless the applicant has satisfied the general requirements set forth in these guidelines, submits a timely, 
complete, and acceptable application and complies with all of the procedures and requirements 
contained within the Authority’s application procedures and program guidelines. Copies of the Application 
are available at the Authority’s website:  
 
http://www.coj.net/departments/independent-boards-and-agencies/jacksonville-housing-finance-authority/multifamily-
programs.aspx 

 
The Authority reserves the right to impose additional requirements on any particular development.  
Compliance with these guidelines does not and shall not create any right by an applicant to a commitment 
or assurance that the Authority will provide the requested financing.   
 
The Authority provides local government support to assist in the construction, rehabilitation and 
permanent financing of multifamily housing developments.  The estimated amount of funds available for 
local government support is approximately $1,500,000. Up to this amount can be used for multi-family 
developments seeking Housing Credits from FHFC pursuant to FHFC RFA 2018-112, and Local Government 
Area of Opportunity Funding from JHFA.  

http://www.coj.net/departments/independent-boards-and-agencies/jacksonville-housing-finance-authority/multifamily-programs.aspx
http://www.coj.net/departments/independent-boards-and-agencies/jacksonville-housing-finance-authority/multifamily-programs.aspx


 

2 

 

The maximum amount of the Local Government Support loans funded pursuant to this NOFA is the 
amount that will allow an Applicant to receive the maximum points or preference for the Local 
Government Area of Opportunity Funding. One loan made in conjunction with FHFC RFA 2018-112 will 
be in the dollar amount necessary to score the maximum amount of points for the Local Government 
Area of Opportunity Funding, while another loan will be in the dollar amount necessary to score the 
maximum number of points for the Local Government Contribution. 
 
All applications received will compete with each other and be selected by the Authority for the available 
funding.  Applications will be reviewed against the criteria listed below and, if selected, each loan will be 
subject to the minimum loan terms stated below.  
 
Applications related to FHFC RFA 2018-112 or any other FHFC RFA are due no later than 5:00 PM, Eastern 
Standard Time, TBD. The application cycle will be processed according to the Authority’s guidelines (which 
guidelines provide, however, that any remaining allocation available after the application cycle may be 
made available to applicants on a first-come, first-served basis). For more information, contact Mark 
Hendrickson. 
 
Applicants must submit an original and a total of two (2) copies to the Authority as follows:  
 
An original, one (1) hard copy, and a PDF of the entire application, and a $5,000 application fee (check 
to JHFA) to: 
 Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority 
 Laura Stagner, Director of Finance 
 214 North Hogan Street, 3rd Floor 
 Jacksonville, FL 32202 
 PDF to be emailed to lstagner@coj.net 
One (1) hard copy and a PDF of the entire application, and $2,500 review fee (check made out to The 
Hendrickson Company) to: 
 Mark Hendrickson 
 1404 Alban Avenue 
 Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
 Contact: Mark Hendrickson, 850.671.5601 mark@thehendricksoncompany.com  

 
GUIDELINES 

1.    PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA 

• Project must be located within Duval County, Florida; 

• Applicant must provide evidence of ownership or other legal control of the project site (e.g., a contract 
or option to purchase the project site); 

• Applicant must provide a set-aside of rental units equal to or greater than the standards for low 
income Housing Tax Credits or applicable FHFC Program, as the case may be; and, 

• Project must have evidence of land use and zoning authorizing the use of the property for multi-family 
residential uses. 

 
2.    PROJECT SELECTION CRITERIA 

• Project feasibility as determined by: 
✓ Applicant’s development and construction experience; 
✓ Applicant’s management experience; and 
✓ Financial feasibility to complete and operate the project (including, but not limited to, cost 

estimates, cash flows, debt service, coverage ratios, the percentage of public monies requested 
compared to project cost; leveraging) 

mailto:lstagner@coj.net
mailto:mark@thehendricksoncompany.com


 

3 

 

• Applicant’s performance and/or compliance (including any prior defaults) of any prior loans or 
contracts with the JHFA or the City; 

• The extent to which social services and assistance is offered to occupants (including, but not limited 
to, job training, computer training, home purchase assistance, health-related support); 

• The extent to which there is temporary (for any rehabilitation projects) or permanent displacement 
of existing tenants (then in which event either shall be scored as a negative factor); and, 

• The following shall receive emphasis in scoring:  
✓ Existing projects with either expiring Section 8 rental assistance contracts, or  
✓ The preservation of projects that have expiring affordable housing land use restrictions. 

• The JHFA established the following funding priorities for Applicants applying for the Local 
Government Area of Opportunity Funding: 
✓ Location within the boundaries of the Jacksonville City Limits (Pre-Consolidation, 1968)   
✓ FHFC category of “Family” demographic 
✓ Maximum Economic Impact 
✓ Developments which provide a lift to the neighborhood, and could lead to additional 

revitalization and/or neighborhood improvement 
✓ Projects that result in the adaptive reuse or redevelopment of existing structures or properties 
✓ Proximity to public transportation 
✓ Leveraging of JHFA funds with other City resources that could be used to meet the FHFC required 

contribution level, and leveraging of JHFA funds with other funds to achieve greater impact on 
the community/neighborhood 

✓ Ability to meet FHFC requirements for the contribution to be a part of permanent financing with 
minimum loan term. 

✓ Developments which commit to an affordability period beyond the minimum 50 year period 
required by FHFC and JHFA 

✓ Geographic Area of Opportunity 
Note: A map is included with the NOFA that shows the boundaries of the Jacksonville City Limits, (Pre-
Consolidation, 1968). If you are unsure if a site is within that area, you may submit the site to Mark 
Hendrickson (mark@thehendricksoncompany.com) who will consult with the City and provide a 
determination prior to the application deadline. 
 
3.   LOAN TERMS:  
To be determined at time of loan commitment(s). The following will apply to all JFHA loans: 

 
The loan amount for Applicants seeking a Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding loan will depend 
upon development type, and are detailed within FHFC RFA 2018-112. The terms for such loans are: 

✓ Loan Amount to be determined by development type, as detailed in FHFC RFA 2018-112 
✓ Term of loan to be the minimum required by FHFC RFA 2018-112 or for development financial 

feasibility 
✓ Monthly payment schedule 
✓ Amortizing or non-amortizing, but amortizing preferred 
✓ 0% interest possible, but not preferred 
✓ Loan due in full in balloon payment at end of loan period if not already amortized 

• The loan documents shall provide for the standard default provisions; and upon default, the loan shall 
accrue interest at the highest rate then permissible under Florida law from and after an event of 
default that remains uncured. 

• Each loan shall be evidenced by a promissory note in the full-face amount of the Local Government 
Support, and secured in its entirety by a subordinate lien mortgage, and shall include such other 
standard loan documents as necessary to evidence and complete the transaction. 

mailto:mark@thehendricksoncompany.com


 

4 

 

• The loan shall not be disbursed until the following minimum due diligence is received and satisfactory 
(however, additional requirements may be necessary for the project):  mortgagee title insurance 
policy (or a marked-down commitment for the same), boundary survey certified to the JHFA, 
environmental site assessments certified to the JHFA, and evidence of concurrency and all permits 
authorizing construction of the project. 

• The loan shall be issued in the name of the JHFA. Such loan shall be reviewed, implemented, and 
administered by the JHFA. 

4.   FEES  
 

• $5,000 Application fee due with original application, check made out to JHFA 

• $2,500 Review fee, due with copies of application, but mailed to and check made out to The 
Hendrickson Company 

• $5,000 Closing Fee, due at loan closing. 
 

5.  DISCLAIMER 
The JHFA is taking no responsibility that FHFC in their initial scoring, or in any scoring revisions that take 
place due to legal disputes between applicants in FHFC RFA 2018-112, or any other FHFC RFA, related to 
the NPV calculation or the calculation for the Area of Opportunity Funding. JHFA is assuming NO LIABILITY 
if FHFC or any judicial or quasi-judicial body comes to a conclusion that the funding levels or loan terms 
do not qualify the Applicant for the Local Government Area of Opportunity or Local Government Support 
points within the FHFC RFA/Application. 
 
If approved for a loan, and with that understanding, if you would like to have a local government 
contribution loan form executed by the City, please fill out the form and submit to both Laura Stagner and 
Mark Hendrickson prior to the submission deadline. 



 

1 

 

 
 
 
 

JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Local Government Support Funds  
 

Application 
 
 

THIS APPLICATION IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF APPLICANTS SEEKING LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
AREA OF OPPORTUNITY FUNDING IN CONJUNCTION WITH FHFC HOUSING CREDIT                 

RFA 2018-112  
 
 
 

SUBMIT THE ORIGINAL, ONE COPY AND A PDF OF THE ENTIRE APPLICATION 
 & APPLICATION FEE OF $5,000 (CHECK MADE TO JHFA) TO: 

 
JACKSONVILLE HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 

LAURA STAGNER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
214 N. HOGAN ST., 7TH FLOOR 

lstagner@coj.net 
JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32202 

904.255.8279 
 

SUBMIT ONE (1) COPY AND A PDF OF THE ENTIRE APPLICATION  
 & REVIEW FEE OF $3,000 (CHECK MADE TO THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY) 

 
THE HENDRICKSON COMPANY 

1404 ALBAN AVENUE 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA  32301 

mark@thehendricksoncompany.com 
850.671.5601 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
REVISED August 15, 2018



 

2 

 

  

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
NOTE:   Please see The City Council of the City of Jacksonville’s Ordinance  2014-185-E, which 
establishes minimum Project Threshold Criteria, Project Selection Criteria, and Loan Terms, all 
for local government support as set forth in this application.  If any of the four Project Threshold 
Criteria are not met (e.g., Project located in Duval County; Site control; Sufficient number of 
rental units per applicable FHFC program; and Project presently zoned and has appropriate land 
use designation permitting multi-family residential for the proposed Project), then the 
application will not be considered by the JHFA.  If an application is approved, then the JHFA will 
determine the loan terms for the local government support, including the minimum 
requirements set forth in Ordinance 2014-185-E and including any other terms required by the 
JHFA (including, but not limited to, the applicant paying the JHFA’s legal fees and all costs related 
to the local government support loan). 
 
IF ONE OF THE PROPOSED FUNDING SOURCES FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT IS BOND, THE BONDS 
MUST BE ISSUED BY JHFA.  THE DEADLINE TO APPLY FOR JHFA BONDS WILL BE NOTICED IN THE 
NOTICE FOR FUND AVAILABILITY. 
  
Please indicate if Applicant will use these funds in conjunction with (check one) 
  

  FHFC HOUSING CREDIT RFA # 2018-112 
  

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT LOAN REQUEST: Please provide the details of your request 
for a Local Government Area of Opportunity Loan, including the requested loan 
amount and loan terms, including interest rate, maturity date, amortization, and 
balloon (if any). The maximum amount of the Local Government Area of 
Opportunity Loan is the minimum amount that will allow the Applicant to score 
the maximum number of points under the FHFC’s guidelines. This amount varies 
bases upon construction type, and will be found in FHFC RFA 2018-112.  
 
LOAN AMOUNT REQUESTED: _________________________________ 
MATURITY OF LOAN IN YEARS: _________________________________ 
INTEREST RATE:   _________________________________ 
AMORTIZATION:   _________________________________ 
BALLOON, IF ANY:  _________________________________ 
VALUE OF CONTRIBUTION FOR FHFC APPLICATION PURPOSES:  ______________ 
EXPLANATION AND CALCULATION: _________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 



 

3 

 

  

I. DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY AND TIMELINE 
 
A. Provide a short narrative description of the Development, including all amenities, unit features and 

scope of work to be performed.  MAJOR DEVELOPMENT AMENITIES WILL BE INCLUDED IN THE LAND 
USE RESTRICTION AGREEMENT AND/OR THE LOW INCOME HOUSING AGREEMENT, IF APPLICABLE.  
Also attach as Exhibit 1 a timeline for the completion of the development which includes all key 
dates, including anticipated timing of permits and credit underwriting, bond closing date, 
completion of construction, rent up, and stabilization. 

 
 ____        

 ____        

 ____        

 ____        

 ____        

 ____        

 ____        

   
B. Attach as Exhibit 2 a narrative description of how this application meets all selection criteria for 

Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding, as detailed in the associated NOFA. 
 
 
C.    Applicant must agree to participate in the Crime Free Multi-Housing Program sponsored by    the 

Jacksonville Sheriff’s Office.  Terms of this program are included as Attachment 1.  Proof of 
participation must be provided to the Authority semi-annually. 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 

 

  

D.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

       

Name of Development  

Location of Development, by street address, or if no 
address, by mileage from nearest cross streets. Also, 
attach a map showing the development’s location. The 
Project must be located in Duval County. (PROJECT 
THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 

 

City Council District Number  

Developer/ 
Location (name of controlling company, not of LP or 
LLC). 

 

Contact person for application, including name, email, 
and phone numbers 

 

Development Construction Type 
New Construction or Rehabilitation 

 

Development Demographic 
Family, Elderly, or other 

 

Number of Units, by Bedrooms  

Total Development Cost  

Cost per unit  

Land Cost  

Acquisition of Building Cost if applicable  

Hard Rehab Cost or Construction Cost  

General Contractor   

Set Aside Period (minimum of 50 years)  

Set Aside Levels (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA)  

Current Zoning (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA)  

Evidence of Site Control (PROJECT THRESHOLD 
CRITERIA) 

 

Geographic Area of Opportunity (Yes or No)  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

5 

 

  

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 
 

A. Applicant Name:        
 

Must be a legally formed entity (i.e., limited partnership, corporation, etc.) qualified to do 
business in the State of Florida at the time of submission of Application.   
 

B.  If partnership, name of general partner(s):       

       

If corporation, name and title of executive officer:       

       

Address:       

       

Telephone:        Facsimile:        
 

 

III.    PROPOSED PROJECT FINANCING 

 
A. Proposed Finance Summary: Please provide as Exhibit 3 a permanent loan period detailed sources 

and uses that is in a format acceptable to FHFC as part of the upcoming HC RFA process.   
 
IV. ABILITY TO PROCEED 
 
 Each Application shall be reviewed for feasibility and ability of the Applicant to proceed with 

construction of the Development. 
 
A. Site Control (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 
 
 Site Control must be demonstrated by the APPLICANT.  At a minimum, a Contract for Purchase and 

Sale must be held by the Applicant for the proposed site. The contract may not until expire until 2018, 
and the buyer MUST be the Applicant. Indicate which form of site control is provided: 

 
       Contract for Purchase & Sale, and Title Insurance Commitment showing marketable title in the 

name of the Seller 
 
       Recorded Deed, and Title Insurance Policy Showing marketable title in the name of the Applicant 
 
       Long-Term Lease:  If site control is demonstrated by long-term lease, a copy of the executed 

lease must be provided.  The lease may be contingent only upon the receipt of Bond 
Financing.  Also, a Title Insurance Commitment showing marketable title in the name of the 
lessee must be included. 

 
 IMPORTANT:  If site control is not held by the Applicant, a fully executed, enforceable contract for 

purchase and sale or assignment of contract must be provided which obligates the seller or assignor 



 

6 

 

  

to transfer the site to the Applicant contingent ONLY upon the award of Financing from the Authority 
or FHFC.  .  Attach Evidence of Site Control as Exhibit 4. 

 
B. Zoning and Land Development Regulations (PROJECT THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 
 
 1. a. Is the site appropriately zoned for the proposed Development:  No         Yes  ___     
 
  b. Indicate zoning designation (s)        
 
  c. Current zoning permits       units per acre, or       for the site (PUD). 
 
  d. Total Number of Units in Development:        
 
  Note:  at a minimum, the current, applicable Future Land Use Map Designation and associated Local Government 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element provisions must permit the proposed Development. ( PROJECT 
THRESHOLD CRITERIA) 

 

 2. New Construction Zoning and Land Development Regulation Development Requirements: 
 

Applicant must provide a letter from the appropriate local government official that the 
Development is consistent with zoning and land development regulations, which verify that the 
site is appropriately zoned and consistent with local land use regulations regarding density and 
intended use.  To meet minimum requirements, attach a letter from the appropriate local 
government official verifying that the current, applicable Future Land Use Map Designation 
and associated Local Government Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element provisions 
permit the proposed Development. Attach the local government verification letter as Exhibit 5. 

 
 3. Rehabilitation Zoning and Land Development Regulation Development Requirements: 
 

Applicant must provide a letter from the appropriate local government official that the 
Development is consistent with zoning and land development regulations, which verify that the 
site is appropriately zoned and consistent with local land use regulations regarding density and 
intended use.  To meet minimum requirements, attach a letter from the appropriate local 
government official verifying that the current, applicable Future Land Use Map Designation 
and associated Local Government Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element provisions 
permit the proposed Development. Attach the local government verification letter as Exhibit 5. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 



 

7 

 

  

V. CERTIFICATION (Original Signatures Required) 
 

The undersigned Applicant certifies that the information in this Application is true, correct and 
authentic. 
 
THE APPLICANT FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES HAVING READ ALL APPLICABLE AUTHORITY RULES 
GOVERNING THE PROGRAM AND ACKNOWLEDGE HAVING READ THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR 
COMPLETING THIS APPLICATION. 
 
THE APPLICANT UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES TO ABIDE BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE APPLICABLE 
FLORIDA STATUTES AND AUTHORITY PROGRAM POLICIES, RULES AND GUIDELINES. 
 
THE UNDERSIGNED REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS 
TRUE AND ACCURATE.  THE PERSON EXECUTING THIS DOCUMENT REPRESNTS THAT HE OR SHE 
HAS THE AUTHORITY TO BIND THE APPLICANT AND ALL INDIVIDUALS AND ENTITIES NAMED 
HEREIN TO THIS WARRANTY OF TRUTHFULNESS AND COMPLETENESS OF THE APPLICATION. 
 
THE APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE AUTHORITY’S INVITATION TO SUBMIT AN 
APPLICATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COMMITMENT TO FINANCE THE PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT.  BEFORE THE AUTHORITY CAN CLOSE A LOAN THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
MUST RECEIVE AN ALLOCATION OF HOUSING CREDITS AND APPLICANTS MUST SUCCESSFULLY 
COMPLETE CREDIT UNDERWRITING AND OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY APROVALS FROM THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS, AUTHORITY COUNSEL, BOND COUNSEL, THE CREDIT UNDERWRITER AND CITY 
COMMISSION AND STAFF. 
 
 
 
    
Applicant                                             Date  Signature of Witness 
 
 
              
Name and Title ((typed or printed)  Name (typed or printed) 
 

 
NOTE:  ORIGINAL APPLICATION MUST CONTAIN AN ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, OR THE APPLICATION WILL BE 
REJECTED AUTOMATICALLY 



 

8 

 

  

ATTACHMENT 1 



 

9 

 

  

 

 



I 10 XY W
I 2

95
 XY

 S
BEAVER ST W

PHILLIPS HY

I 9
5 X

Y N

NORMANDY BV

103RD ST

BEACH BV

SA
N J

OSE
 BV

ATLANTIC BV

NEW KINGS RD

DUNN AV

MA
IN

 S
T N

SR 9A XY N

LEM TURNER RD

OTIS RD

U S
 30

1 H
Y S

OLD KINGS RD

ZOO PY

JO
NE

S R
D

BL
AN

DI
NG

 B
V

OLD PLANK RD

LA
NE

 AV
 S

HECKSCHER DR

J TURNER BUTLER BV

COLLINS RD

GARDEN ST

BUCCANEER TL

U S
 30

1 H
Y N

IM
ES

ON
 R

D

PLUMMER RD

KE
RN

AN
 BV

 S

HO
DG

ES
 BV

FT CAROLINE RD

YE
LL

OW
 BL

UF
F R

D

SR
 9A

 X
Y S

POST ST

STARRATT RD

RO
OS

EV
EL

T B
V

PRITCHARD RD

COMMONWEALTH AV

CEDAR POINT RD

PE
AR

L S
T N

HART XY

DU
VA

L R
D

CH
AF

FE
E 

RD
 S

NEW BERLIN RD

MONUMENT RD
MERRILL RD

CA
SS

AT
 AV

YELLOW WATER RD

UNIVERSITY BV

ARGYLE FOREST BV

LENOX AV

ACREE RD

LA
NE

 AV
 N

KINGS RD

PECAN PARK RD

MA
YP

OR
T R

D

SOUTEL DR

BR
AD

DO
CK

 R
D

CE
SE

RY
 BV

RI
CK

ER
 R

D

GI
RV

IN
 R

D

OLD ST AUGUSTINE RD

JA
MM

ES
 R

D

SH
IN

DL
ER

 D
R

ARLINGTON XY

WILSON BV

118TH ST

GATE PY

BU
LL

S 
BA

Y H
Y

ST AUGUSTINE RD

TROUT RIVER BV

PARK ST

GREENLAND RD

SR A1A HY

SO
UT

HS
ID

E 
BV

EASTPORT RD

LORETTO RD

BIS
CA

YN
E B

V

BR
AN

AN
 FI

EL
D 

RD

HO
OD

 R
D

EDGEWOOD AV W

SAN JUAN AV

PENMAN RD

KE
RN

AN
 BV

 N

FIR
ES

TO
NE

 R
D

MORSE AV

HENDRICKS AV

LOSCO RD

BL
AI

R 
RD

PIC
KE

TT
VIL

LE
 R

D

BUCKMAN BG S

MONCRIEF RD W

HA
MI

LT
ON

 S
T

45TH ST W

OR
TE

GA
 B

V

EMERSON ST

I 295 XY N

HARTS RD

MY
RT

LE
 AV

 N

5TH ST W RO
GE

RO
 R

D

FO
UR

AK
ER

 R
D

BOWDEN RD

TA
LL

EY
RA

ND
 AV

SE
MI

NO
LE

 R
D

MA
RT

IN
 LU

TH
ER

 KI
NG

 JR
 PY

SUNBEAM RD

HERLONG RD

ME
LS

ON
 AV

HOGAN RD

8TH ST E

ED
GE

W
OO

D A
V 

N

BROWARD RD

BELFO
RT R

D

12TH ST W

21ST ST E

3RD ST

OL
D M

ID
DL

EB
UR

G 
RD

 S

OLD
 MIDDLEBURG RD N

SAN PABLO RD S

SCOTT MILL RD

EL
LIS

 R
D 

N

TERRELL RD

UNIVERSITY BV W

RA
MP

AR
T R

D

EDGEWOOD AV S

HA
LS

EM
A R

D 
N

MC
 D

UF
F A

V 
S

FAYE RD

3RD ST N

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 B
V S

FOREST BV

POWERS AV

MONCRIEF RD

MT PLEASANT RD

ST
 JO

HN
S B

LU
FF

 R
D 

S

PU
LA

SK
I R

D

AL
TA

 D
R

CRYSTAL SPRINGS RD

HO
OD

 R
D 

S

BAYMEADOWS RD

SIBBALD RD

HA
MM

ON
D 

BV

FLORIDA BV

9TH ST S

BU
SC

H 
DR

 N

ICW JTB BG W

LEONID RD

BAY ST W

RIVERSIDE AV

DE
AN

 R
D

LONE STAR RD

HARLOW BV

3RD ST S

GOLFAIR BV

ALTAMA RD

MANDARIN RD

BO
UL

EV
AR

D

ALADDIN RD

GATE PY N

EL
LIS

 R
D 

S

WESCONNETT BV
TIMUQUANA RD

MARBON RD

CA
HO

ON
 R

D

SO
UT

HS
ID

E 
CO

NN
EC

TO
R 

BV

DAMES POINT BG  N

JULINGTON CREEK RD

HARTLEY RD

BUFFALO AV

KINGS AV

MATHEWS BG W

ST
 JO

HN
S B

LU
FF

 R
D 

N

CAPPER RD

KIN
G 

ST
OLD KINGS RD S

SHAD RD

TALLULAH AV

BR
OA

D 
ST

 N

AIRPORT RD

CR
AV

EN
 R

D

CH
AF

FE
E 

RD
 N

STOCKTON ST

ACOSTA XY

MAINE ST

SP
RI

NG
 G

LE
N 

RD

ICW WONDERWOOD BG W

LAKE SHORE BV

FOREST ST

CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
RD

TOUCHTON RD

RA
MP

 R
P

BEAUCLERC RD

HOOD LANDING RD

NORWOOD AV

CA
NA

L S
T N

HA
LS

EM
A R

D 
S

BARNES RD S

DUVAL ST E

DUVAL STATION RD

44TH ST E

HART BG N

BA
RN

ES
 R

D

CLARK RD

SAN MARCO BV

BA
RT

RA
M 

RD

MI
LL

 C
RE

EK
 R

D

LIV
E O

AK
 D

R

HA
RT

SF
IE

LD
 R

D

PH
OE

NI
X A

V

TOLEDO RD

BURNT MILL RD

MC
 D

UF
F A

V 
N

MC CORMICK RDKINGS RD N

SPRING PARK RD

BUSCH DR

30TH ST W

SEAGATE AV

SHERRY DR

MEMORIAL PARK RD

OC
EA

N 
ST

 N

GLYNLEA RD

SA
N 

PA
BL

O 
RD

 W

GROVE PARK BV

WINONA DR

HYDE GROVE AV

JU
LIA

 ST
 N

LAWTON AV

HE
RS

CH
EL

 S
T

LA
UR

A S
T N LIB

ER
TY

 ST
 N

CLYDE DR

NEW BERLIN RD E

ORANGE PICKER RD

IMESON PARK BV

CENTURION PY

DI
AM

ON
D 

C 
LA

DONNER RD

ORTEGA BG

ST JO
HNS AV

GATOR BOWL BV

SO
UT

H 
BE

AC
H 

PY

ICW ATLANTIC BG E

GRAND AVE BG

MAIN ST

OC
EA

N S
T

ATLANTIC BV

I 95 XY N

RAMP RP

JULINGTON CREEK RD

PARK STHA
MI

LT
ON

 S
T

OLD KINGS RD S

SR
 9A

 X
Y S

RAMP RP

BEACH BV

SO
UT

HS
ID

E 
BV

SR
 9A

 X
Y N

I 9
5 X

Y N

SAN PABLO RD S

OLD ST AUGUSTINE RD

DUVA
L R

D

LA
KE

 SH
OR

E B
V

RAMP RP

MC CORMICK RD

BEACH BV

BAYMEADOWS RD

5TH ST W

ATLANTIC BV

I 295 XY S

BRANAN FIELD RD

MAIN ST N

HECKSCHER DR

FAYE RD

LENOX AV

MANDARIN RD

PA
RK

 ST

SR A1A HY

KIN
G 

ST

RAMP RPCity of Jacksonville
0 18,000 36,000 54,000 72,0009,000

Feet
Developed by James M. Reed, AICP - jreed@coj.net
August 2017
Content intended for illustrative purposes only.

Preconsolidation and Today







































































OCCUPANCY LEVELS 

6-30-18 
 

1 

 

Active Rental Developments—Financed by DCHFA or JHFA 
Development & 
Address 

Developer Original 
Bonds & 
Issue Date 

Units & 
Occupancy 

Bennett Creek 

3585 Salisbury Drive 32216 

Richman $21,600,000 
12-21-10 

264 
95% (-3%) 

Brookwood Forest Apartments 

1251 Fromage Way  32225 

CED $10,000,000 
2005 

168 
95% (-3%) 

Camri Green Apartments 

3820 Losco Road  32257 

Vestcor $9,200,000 
2003 

184 
98% (-0%) 

Caroline Oaks Vestcor $5,600,000 
4-22-15 

82 
100% (+1%) 

Cathedral Terrace Blue Sky $12,500,000 
1-21-16 

200 
97% (+1%) 

Christine Cove 

3730 Soutel Dr  32208 

Carlisle $6,000,000 
2006 

96 
99% (-0%) 

Hartwood (AKA Hampton Ridge) 

11501 Harts Road  32218 

Southport $5,840,000 
2006 

110 
95% (-0%) 

Lofts at LaVilla 

995 Water Street 32204 

Vestcor Housing 
Credits 
$265,000 
JHFA loan 

130 
98% (-2%) 

Mary Eaves 

1250 16th Street West 32209 

Vestcor FHFC bonds 
$300,000 
JHFA loan 

79 
100% (+0%) 

Mt. Carmel Gardens 

5846 Mt. Carmel Terrace 32216 

BREC $9,750,000 
8-19-16 

207 
Rolling Rehab 98% 

Oakwood Terrace 

8201 Kona Avenue 

Southport $12,700,000 
6-30-17 

200 
Rolling Rehab 81%  

Timberwood Trace 

12250 Atlantic Blvd. 32225 

Southport $16,000,000 
2-1-17 

224 
89% (-8%) 

Timuquana Park Apartments 

5615 Seaboard Ave.  32244 

Southport $4,300,000 
2004 

100 
99% (-2%) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



OCCUPANCY LEVELS 

6-30-18 
 

2 

 

 

103 Month Occupancy Levels—Entire Portfolio Average Occupancy 

 

 
 

 

Average Occupancy by Development 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91 97 103

Portfolio Occupancy

80

85

90

95

100

1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67

Bennett Creek



OCCUPANCY LEVELS 

6-30-18 
 

3 

 

Average Occupancy by Development 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91 97 103

Brookwood

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91 97 103

Camri Green



OCCUPANCY LEVELS 

6-30-18 
 

4 

 

Average Occupancy by Development 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

1 7 13 19 25

Caroline Oaks

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

1 7 13 19 25

Cathedral Terrace



OCCUPANCY LEVELS 

6-30-18 
 

5 

 

Average Occupancy by Development 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91 97 103

Christine Cove

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91 97 103

Hartwood



OCCUPANCY LEVELS 

6-30-18 
 

6 

 

Average Occupancy by Development 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

1

Lofts at LaVilla

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

1

Mary Eaves



OCCUPANCY LEVELS 

6-30-18 
 

7 

 

Average Occupancy by Development 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

1 7 13

Mt. Carmel

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

1 7

Oakwood



OCCUPANCY LEVELS 

6-30-18 
 

8 

 

Average Occupancy by Development 

 

 
 

 

 
 

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

1 7 13

Timberwood

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

1 7 13 19 25 31 37 43 49 55 61 67 73 79 85 91 97 103

Timuquana


	Cover - JHFA Agenda FINAL 8-15-18 revised
	Tab 01a - JHFA Minutes 6-18-18 DRAFT
	Lauren Bryan, OIG
	Steve Moore, Vestcor
	Ryan Hoover, Vestcor
	BOARD MEETING
	Vice-Chairman Cummings called the meeting to order at 12:02 pm
	Minutes
	Public Comments
	Staff Report and Financial Report
	Ms. Stagner presented the JHFA financials and a proposed FY 18-19 budget. After discussion, Ms. Bumbarger moved, with a second by Ms. Scofield, that the Board authorize Ms. Stagner to submit the proposed FY 18-19 budget. The motion passed 5-0.
	Ms. Stagner reported on the upcoming procurement process for professional services, noting that the existing contracts had been given a three-month extension, to synchronize the contracts with the City’s fiscal year. She also explained the process tha...
	Mr. Hendrickson gave a brief summary of the bond allocation process. Ms. Bond-Collins reported on submissions made for single family and multi-family bond allocations.
	Adjournment

	Tab 02a - JHFA Direction to Team from Earlier Meetings 8-15-18
	Tab 03a - FA Memo 8-15-18 FINAL revised
	Tab 04a - Resolution Authorizing Interlocal Agreement (01387687)
	Tab 04b - Jacksonville Interlocal Agreement - 2018 (01383593-2)
	Tab 05a - 2019 Local Govt Area of Opportunity Funding NOFA DRAFT 7-15-18
	Tab 05b - 2019 Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding Application DRAFT 8-15-18
	Tab 05c - Map of Jacksonville City Limits Pre-Consolidation
	Tab 06a - ED - Loan Agreement - JHFA - Houston Street
	Tab 07a - Occupancy 6-30-18

